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Additional attendees (2)
PRESS:

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. Good morning, Members and members of the
public.
The Public Works Committee is now in session.
Today is
September 11,2006 and the time is 9:07. Members, we do have two items on the
agenda this morning, PW-39 as well as PW-18.
At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Members that are here this
morning. We do have our Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Molina; our Council
Chair, Mr. Hokama; as well as Mr. Mateo from Molokai. Also with us this
morning: our, the Administration personnel, Mr. Milton Arakawa, who is the
Director of Public Works and Environmental Management, as well as
Cindy Young, the Deputy Corporation Counsel. Supporting this Committee is
our Council Staff, Scott Jensen, as well as Yvette Bantilan.
Members, again, we do have these two items that are on the agenda, and at this
time the Chair would like to call for public testimony. But before we do public
testimony, I would like to have the, the Committee Members as well as the Staff
members and the members of the public to either turn your cell phone to the off
position or the silent mode position. Thank you.
At this time, we'll have public testimony. Testimony will be limited to three
minutes and one minute to conclude. Please state your name and who you
represent when you do your testifying. The first person signed up to testify this
morning is Lee Altenberg, and Mr. Altenberg will be testifying on PW-18.

HUJ'llHll~, Committee Members.
speaking on
own
morning. I am a professor at University
Hawaii at Manoa Computer Science and I served on the Sub-Committee to this
Committee on, on Outdoor Lighting Standards that considered an initial draft
ordinance for outdoor lighting that a community group, including myself,
Mike Maberry, and Steve Sutrov introduced to the County Council many years
ago now, and is now before you in a descendant form that has gone through
meetings of a group of the primary interest in the community, that have an interest
in outdoor lighting: the Maui Hotel Association, the Wailea Community
Association, and numerous other groups that were interested.
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This issue has been lingering for many years and the problem of light pollution is
not going away. And there's some basic larger issues that come to my mind. Is,
is Maui County a County that can deal with problems effectively and produce
effective solutions? Various things have been impeding the control of light
pollution on Maui. I would say every time this issue comes up, you see people
thinking, oh no, we can't make everything dark at night, it won't be safe. And
there's a considerable amount of fear, uncertainty, and doubt that always comes
up with this issue. And I think that comes from our failure to do one's homework,
to actually read how this draft ordinance has evolved and what its provisions are
and what it would actually do.
And so in particular it doesn't make any place darker on the ground, and it calls
for changes to existing lights only after a ten-year period. And it doesn't
compromise safety. Specific provisions are made for lighting which is involved
with safety, so that, that is not compromised. The, one of the key issues that's
come up within the County is the issue of Low Pressure Sodium. There's simply
no known physical way to preserve astronomy on Haleakala without the use of
Low Pressure Sodium. That's easily documented.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you. Additional minute?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Additional minute or if you want to come back for another
three minutes after everybody has concluded their testimony you can do that, also.
MR. ALTENBERG: I'll just take one minute now to conclude.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
MR.

evidence, the
law An'-,"""'Acn-\
unresolved.
Big Island has
of any
Sodium. There ought to
a record
prosecutions
compromised by
Pressure Sodium, any
injuries to officers which have occurred because of Low Pressure Sodium. I'm
not aware of any such record.

Low Pressure Sodium
the

So the question is, are we dealing with a theoretical problem or a real problem?
And I think we have to base our Council policies on real evidence. So I'll thank
you for your attention.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Altenberg. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much.
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MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time the Chair would like to recognize, joining us this
morning, Member Tavares. Member Tavares is not part of the Committee but is
part of the Maui County Council. Thank you for joining us. Second testifier
testifying on PW-18 is Mike Maberry.
MR. MABERRY: Mr. Chair, Committee Members, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Chair, there are
three points I would like to make today: number one, that using fully shielded
lights makes the sky darker, not the ground; number two, High Pressure Sodium
lights are not brighter than Low Pressure Sodium lights; and number three, that it
is time to move this proposed ordinance forward. Shielding directs the light that
we are generating, which comes at great expense to our economy and our
environment--down to illuminate the area where people can use it, not up into the
night sky where it confuses our endangered night-flying birds.
Intensity or brightness is the total amount of light regardless of what color the
human eye sees. Brightness is measured in lumens and the lumen rating of a lamp
is the measure of the total light output of the lamp. If a High Pressure Sodium
lamp has the same lumen rating as a Low Pressure Sodium lamp they have the
same intensity, the same brightness, they are the same regardless of the color of
light the human eye sees.
In 1982, activities associated with the Haleakala Observatories employed about
150 people. Today there are some 1,200 people employed in environmentally
clean, high-tech, high-paying jobs. My understanding is currently a living wage
on Maui for one adult and two children is approximately $53,000 a year. The
average wage of the tech community on Maui is $75,000 a year. If tech is to
continue to serve as a third supporting leg of Maui's economy LPS must be a
component
proposed v .....uu..w.u,'-'
We must preserve
night sky over
protecting
our
satellite
which allows us to keep an
on tyrants
9111,
terrorists such as North Korea and
being
anmversary
I hope you would take that into consideration.
Today also marks the sixth year that I have stood before the Maui County Council
asking you to support an ordinance that would protect our night sky_ During that
time you have reviewed reports, studies; and heard testimony, expert testimony;
received correspondence from public officials and jurisdictions who have already
taken similar action to what is being proposed for Maui.
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The island of Hawaii has had a lighting ordinance--just as was mentioned a
minute ago--that requires LPS use for almost 20 years without any problems. In
the six years that this has been, that this issue has been before this body we have
not reviewed, you have not reviewed a single study that proves that High Pressure
Sodium provides any more safety or security than Low Pressure Sodium. Use of
fully shielded and LPS lighting does not mean a darker Maui. It means the sky
above Maui will be darker and the ground, the area on the ground where people
are living and working will actually be brighter. Please move this proposed
ordinance forward. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank: you, Mr. Maberry. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you again. The next testifier is Bud Pikrone and he'll be
testifying on PW-18.
MR. PIKRONE: Good morning, Chair, Committee Members. I don't really know where
to begin on this. You've heard the testimony before me that this bill has been
around here for a long time. This topic has been discussed over and over. And a
little over two years ago we were at an impasse basically because the community
was fractured. There was a split on a variety of issues and this Committee here
was looking for some type of concurrence or harmony within the community.
The members of the community, at that time, all testified on different, all sides.
They were just allover the place. They all had their own concerns.
But we decided to get together to work together to discuss these issues and
develop a plan that would be practical, reasonable, and effective for all. Now we
have prevented, presented such a plan to you, a plan that addresses the concerns
of cost and safety and promotes the use of LPS for the future. This combination
that we've been talking about, now, it takes that into consideration. We
have... shielding is the number one component, we want to push shielding
throughout the island--that's number one--and use a alternative or a combined
lighting system
the
for parking lots,
to address
the safety concerns of the Police Department.
The
removed
replaced
with simple reasonable ways to accomplish the islands needs today.
is a
that provides a practical and easy solution for hotels, businesses, government, and
public services. All of these sectors have been taken into consideration.
You also have the commitment of myself and the others who worked on this bill
to make this work. We need to make this happen now, so we can focus our
efforts to educating the public and businesses to make the necessary changes
sooner than later. This bill should not be delayed further. We have an
opportunity to make our island better now with the support of many people. For
the first time, we have these groups working together, at least the majority of
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them, and we believe we can work with the others to get them on board. I ask you
to pass this bill so we can proudly look to the future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? I do have one-MR. PIKRONE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Pikrone. In regards to shielding that would be shielding
for both High Pressure Sodium as well as Low Pressure Sodium?
MR. PIKRONE: Correct. All lighting should be shielded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. The last testifier that signed up
before the meeting this morning is Mr. Glenn Shepherd. Mr. Shepherd will be
testifYing on PW-39.
MR. SHEPHERD (SPOKE FROM THE AUDIENCE): Mr. Chairman, couldn't we wait
until after Maui Electric gives their show and tell or what I might say might be
superfluous.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair will make that exception, Mr. Shepherd.
MR. SHEPHERD (SPOKEN FROM THE AUDIENCE): Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Are there any more members out in the public here this
morning would like to testifY? If not, we'll hold public testimony open until
PW-39 is completed. Thank you.

PW-39

CENTRAL MAUl LANDFILL (C.c. No. 05-281)

on our agenda is
CommUflication No. 05-281, relating to
matter
Landfill.
Maui Electric Company
be doing a presentation regarding
landfill
gas-to-energy technology. Before we can up Maui Electric to do their
presentation, I'd like to call on Mr. Arakawa to provide some comments.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you know, we are in the process of closing
Phase I and II of our Central Maui Landfill. And we are required by the
Environmental Protection Agency and Department of Health to install piping and
a flare system in the landfilL The reason for this requirement is that as mUflicipal
trash decomposes it creates methane gas and other gases. And as the methane
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migrates to the upper atmosphere it's effective in keeping heat from being
released from the earth, so this type of issue, you know, contributes to global
warming and possible climate change.
Since we are required to bum methane generated from the landfill this has
spumed the possibility of using methane gas to instead create electricity. And
that's what today's presentation is about. Also on the issue of what to do with
municipal solid waste in the long term we are also evaluating whether
waste-to-energy or some form of incineration should be pursued for future phases
of the Central Maui Landfill. This is another area in which we are interested in
obtaining more information and that's also part oftoday's presentation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, this morning we do have
two representatives from the electric company. We do have Neal Shinyama as
well as Arthur Seki. So at this time, the Chair would like to call a short recess so
that we can darken up the room and lower the screen. Recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:23 a.m.
9:24 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: '" (gavel). .. Members, thank you for that short recess. At
this time, I would like to call on the representatives here this morning from Maui
Electric as well as from Hawaiian Electric Company to start their presentation.
Neal.
MR. SEKI: (PowerPoint presentation) Okay. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of
the Committee. My name is Art Seki, I'm with Hawaiian Electric Company
representing Maui Electric Company. The outline of my presentation will cover
the overview, options, technology, issues, and experience related to landfill gas
and also municipal solid waste.
Just as an overview, landfill gas as mentioned
is
microbiological decomposition
This is a oxygen free
is roughly 50 ,",p,""p,,.,,.
gas
is
50 percent carbon dioxide, and some water.
heat content is roughly
350 to 600 BTUs per cubic foot, and it's a function the type fuel that might
be in the landfill.
Just as a comparison, natural gas is roughly about 1,000 BTU per standard cubic
foot. The type of gas and the amount of gas that's produced is a function of the,
the type of fuel or, or waste that put, puts, that's put into the landfill, also the age
of the waste, the composition of and type of organic compounds, because you
need volatile organic compounds for the bugs to, to eat and decompose.
Temperature and moisture is also a function of the, the kind of production that
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you'll get. As a rule of thumb, you get .02 to .22 cubic feet of natural gas or
methane gas per year. This is a commercial technology.
Some of the options that can be dealt with the landfill gas: it can be vented to the
atmosphere which would go out, and it has an impact on the greenhouse gases
that's out there; it can be flared or burnt; it can be used to generate heat or steam
within the process for, for a secondary use; and also can be used to generate
electricity.
The benefits of using the landfill gas is it... for energy is that they will displace
the amount of fossil fuels that would be needed to produce that, that type of
kilowatt hours. It eliminates the methane release and reduces the hazardous and
volatile emissions. Odor is also reduced, and it creates a potential revenue stream
for this process.
The technology that would be part of this landfill gas-energy system is a system
of, of valves, pipes, and, and wells that be placed into the landfill. There will be a
compressor. There should be some gas treatment to take some of the emissions
that will be generated and also an electrical generator.
Typical of the generating options that would be used, the technologies could have
an internal combustion engine. Combustion turbine has been used. Also,
emerging technologies such as fuel cells or micro turbines and Stirling engines
could use this gas.
Just a rough schematic of, of what's needed for this, for capturing the energy,
again, you have your network of, of vertical wells and horizontal pipelines that
you have on surface. It goes to a separator, takes out some of the moisture; it
goes to a compressor; it goes to a pretreatment process. And then you go to your,
your technology, your combustion turbine or, or generator.
Some of the issues related to
to estimate
and verify
say,
know, concrete and
things you're not going to
a
gas being
generated and so the gas quality
be
also got to determine who
has the rights to this landfill gas.
As far as air permits, depending on a concentration of certain constituents you
may have a major source or minor source declaration for this operation. These
projects are usually small and the economics probably run about $1,500 to about
$2,000 a kilowatt and it's very site specific.
Experience for landfill gas, in the U.S. there's about 400 of these landfill gas
projects creating electricity or steam. There's potential for more uses on the
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mainland. In Hawaii we do not have any operating landfill gas project. The last
one that operated was the Kapaa Landfill in Honolulu. The way, it was a
3.2 megawatt system on an 8-acre landfill area. It produced landfill gas that was
used by Ameron, and also the electricity that was created was also sold to the
Hawaiian Electric. The operation ceased about 2002, because of catastrophic
failure to the turbine and also declining resource. The age of the landfill was
roughly about 10 years at that time.
Okay. So switching topics now, I'm going to go through the same type of slides
for municipal solid waste. And the amount that's created by human activity
roughly is about 4.5 pounds of garbage per day. Typical makeup of this waste,
primarily paper, plastics, organics is the primary use. You have some metals in
there, glasses. Unprocessed MSW has a heating value of about 5,000 BTU per
pound. As a comparison coal is about 10,000 BTU per pound. Biomass like the
bagasse that HC&S burns, assuming 50 percent moisture, is roughly about
5,000 BTU per pound, also. It's a commercial technology to reduce the volume
and to create electricity.
The options for MSW is that it can be landfilled; it can be incinerated; it can be
combusted to produce heat or steam; it can be combusted to produce electricity.
The benefits would be to reduce the amount of waste that goes to the landfill,
reduce the amount of imported fossil fuel that if it's producing electricity or
steam.
The technologies that are out there for incineration for its commercial technology
right now, examples of that was Waipahu and Kewalo Basin, they used to do
some incinerate over there. You have mass burn technologies where the bulk of
the, the waste coming in is incinerated, goes to a boiler, and then a steam turbine
generator.
You have another process called refuse derived
to
Honolulu where you have a separation of the metals and glasses and other things.
And it's, by this process is a fluff that comes through
it goes to a
then
another technology that's been talked
past and
called plasma arc gasification.
is more a pre-commercial, demonstration type
of technology right now.
Issues with MSW is the resource availability and also depending on the plans for
your landfill, what you're going to do with it. Impact of (and to) recycling
programs that might be existed or planned; public opposition and support in
varying degrees; emissions and permitting; tipping fees may have to be adjusted
to, to cover some of the cost of the expense of the capital. Rough economics:
mass burn about 6,500 to 9,100 per kilowatt; RDF--because of separation aspects
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in there--tend to be higher, about 9,100 to about 12 hundred, thousand dollars a
kW. Plasma arc is, is also in the 7,000 to 9,000 per kilowatt.
Okay. Experience with MSW is that in the U.S. there's about 74 mass burn
technologies and about 15 refuse derived fuel type plants, about 2,500 megawatts
installed. In Hawaii we have one facility, H-POWER that has a RDF plant. And
on the Big Island because of landfill issues they're looking into an incineration
process. On Kauai as part of a request for proposals they selected also a mass
burn unit for that island. H-POWER is a 46 megawatt contract with the Hawaiian
Electric Utility, it's a 25 year project covering about 1,700 tons per day of refuse.
And it reduces the amount of waste that goes to landfill about 90 percent. There's
talk about possibly expansion of this facility with the County. Plasma arc has
limited experience in the U.S. and Japan, some small power generation systems
occurrmg.
So in conclusion, we know that landfill gas and municipal solid waste-to-energy
projects can achieve two important objectives: it can reduce the amount of
methane released to the atmosphere and landfilling of MSW; and it can produce,
what we call, renewable energy in that respect. Landfill gas and MSW resource
availability is highly dependent on the County landfill plans and what's available.
The technologies are commercial to convert landfill gas or MSW into electricity.
Community support and project economics are going to be key issues, I think, in
all of this. And MECO supports the energy production from these types of
technologies. And that's my last slide and open to any questions that you all may
have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Mr. Seki. Members, at this time the
Chair will call a short recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:35 a.m.
9:37 a.m .

. . . (gavel) . ..
sessIOn.
Mr. Seki, for that presentation.
Members, do you have
for the presenter from Hawaiian Electric, Mr. Seki?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My first question is, what is the current position
regarding this type of technology in the current... (CHANGE TAPE) ... rated
resource plan for Maui Electric?
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MR. SEKI: For the Integrated Resource Planning process it was not looked into as far as
in detail--that's the other types of technologies--because of the size. Given the
size of the landfills over here, you know, I think you're talking about hundreds of
kilowatts examination, and if the County was going to do something, I think, and
they were going to sell electricity or from the ...to the utility, you know, we
would just take it at that point. But because of size reasons we figured that
compared to the coal plants or the wind farms or the biomass plants it was too
small to be, to be monitored, I think, or to spend the time to look into the details
of that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. My understanding is the utility is currently
going through a new, new, new process or an updating process. So is there
consideration, in this current review, comments, or a position within the plan
regarding this type of technology, or is it still going to be left blank?
MR. SEKI: I think the plan is being developed, we had public meetings recently. And if
that technology is .. .if someone is going to develop that technology and wants to
sell the power to the utility, the utility is obligated to buy that power.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But the utility by itself will not initiate any, any type
of program?
MR. SEKI: I think it has to do more with the County and what the County is going to do
with the wastes, you know, what, what the plans are for the waste or the landfill,
how it's going to be, that's going to be treated, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So .. .let me just then state what, what I'm, my
understanding is. The utility in our County would rather react to our energy
situation than be proactive and give us alternatives to how to approach our energy
requirements?
that a good understanding of
just sharing
us
morning?
I
as part
Resource
is offering
different renewable options
are, that are out there that are different from, say,
the past. I think we're being proactive
the wind energy or biomass
technologies that might be part of the, the plans that is selected for the, the utility.
So I think we're trying to be proactive in our stand in trying to develop different
technologies.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I don't. .. well then, you and I just have a difference
of, of understanding 'cause, you know, to me the utility in general with the old
regimes have been very dinosaurish and unwilling to get off the fossil fuel
mentality. And until government and other entrepreneurs have tried to have the
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utility at least be more open to other types of energy, the utility has been very
dogged in not getting off its fossil fuel program.
So you know until the Waena rezoning came about eight years ago, I can tell you
it's been very difficult to get the utility, whether Maui Electric reports to the
holding company HEI and their mentality in the State, particularly with our State
energy plan. I just see a reactionary mentality and I just had hoped that in the new
IRP, especially with this presentation to our Committee this morning that the
Chairman has allowed, that Maui Electric will now take a new approach to be the
leader in the State.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Shinyama.
MR. SHINYAMA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama. Yeah. Just to answer that, I want to just
clarify the IRP process. You know, we go through a process that identifies
different technologies and, excuse me, it's based on, you know, what we believe
can be done in a certain period of time. However, in looking at our IRP process
now, you know, we have adopted, what we call, a sustainability type of a plan
which is beyond the normal scope that we normally look at. And it does look at
these options that are, you know, maybe not viable now or have question marks
now, but we are, do want to include that in our plan do they become viable.
And I think, you know, you've seen the commercials with Hawaiian Electric
recently with Jade Moon in terms of wanting to do more in terms of biofuels and
other alternatives. And we are, we are willing to look at that. And you know we
have been in discussion. I think we've been proactive in discussions with people
like Milton Arakawa as to what are the options. And in fact this landfill gas was
one of the issues that we had talked about in the future, I mean, in the past.
So we are interested, obviously, we want to work with the County as much as we
can to move some of these projects forward. And I think, you know,
of this
presentation is just to give an understanding
what the issues are.
like
Milton
mentioned, you know, the County is looking for, because
the
requirement to
to cap
as to what were the options
and that's
why the request for Art to come here and kind of talk about that a
bit more
and give some little bit insight about what some of the options might be.
Ultimately, you know, it is the County in terms of what they want to do, but
obviously we are willing to work with the County to, to move it forward.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Shinyama, I appreciate your comments and I
know you're one of the, the new generation of our, of leader, of leadership in the
utility between Maui Electric. But I hope you can appreciate my frustration, you
know. Eight years ago when we gave the zoning some of the benefits that the
utility, if I can recall well, under a few presidents ago was its proximity to the
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Central Maui Landfill. And the Council had conditioned the zoning if I remember
correctly, and I'm glad Ms. Tavares is here 'cause she was with me on that
Council. I think we made up to 15 acres of the rezoning site for to be used for
renewable and energy option types of programs or projects besides the, the, within
the total rezoned area.
MR. SHINYAMA: Actually, it started off at about 15, but by the time it came down to
the zoning actually passing it's more like 50 percent. It's about 32-plus acres. So
about half of the 65 acres that has been rezoned has designated for renewable
alternative energy. So, yes, half of that property is designed for that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
So from your point of view this morning,
Mr. Shinyama, is there some advantages to the proximity to our landfill and the
ability of you to do some projects in the short term regarding whether it be
waste-to-energy or methane gas?
MR. SHINYAMA: Yes. And I believe we have expressed that interest and that
possibility. We haven't gone to the details as to what would be required.
However like I said, the 32 acres that's at Waena was designated for renewable
so, excuse me, any opportunity we have to look at projects in that sort we'd
obviously do that. So we are willing to, to take a quicker look, a harder look,
however you want us to be part of that program. I'm sure Maui Electric will be
right here to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are you aware of U.S. Department of Energy grants
or funds available to, for use either by you the utility or our County to get this
projects moving forward and see if it makes sense for our County?
MR. SHINYAMA: I'm looking at our IRP people, I'm not really sure right offhand if
there are those types of grants available, but we can go look and we can come
back to you and, and verify
are any opportunities
sense.
one more, please.
PONTA.NILLA:
COUNCILMEMBERHOKAMA: Thank you. We are aware that our sister County of
the Big Island is in a RFP stage to get some type of energy from their solid waste
program. And I think with, before the end of the year they would like to have that
RFP squared away and then hopefully within the first half next year have a
contract to move forward. Are you aware of what your sister utility on the Big
Island is doing in participation to assist that County, and does it make sense for
you to offer Mr. Arakawa in our Public Works Department that information and
options of how to approach our unique needs?
- 13 -

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2006

MR. SHINYAMA: I'm not aware of what specifically the utility is doing on the Big
Island in terms of that particular proposal. We can find out and we can get back
to Milton and talk about that specifically. I don't know the, the synergies
involved with the utility and the County per se. So we can, we can obviously find
that out and come back with that, too. Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: TharJk you, Mr. Shinyama. Chairman, tharJk you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: TharJk you, Mr. Hokama, Mr. Shinyama. Any more questions,
Members? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Shinyama, one of
the references was in being able to verify that the landfill does in fact, will be in
fact be recognized as a viable resource. Who does that? Is that, is that a
requirement that the County of Maui needs to, to do in terms of the investment
that'll be needed to actually install what was described as the pipes, the valves,
and the wells, et cetera? So how is this, this verification or viability of resource in
the landfill help to determine the extent of the investments that's going to be
needed, you know, to deal with the landfills transition?
MR. SHINYAMA: I'll have Art chime in, if I'm leading this the wrong way. My
understanding is that when you put in the piping for the landfill, then you, there's
an opportunity there then to extract the gas and to determine...run it through
some tests to see what your quality of the gas is that is coming out. Like Art had
mentioned in his presentation, depending on what's in the landfill you may have
different quality of gas.
So and that would determine like what kind of system you have to put in terms of
filtration or whatever system you need prior to the gas going into a generator and
how much gas you actually have, you know. What is, what is the magnitude
terms of the pressure coming out. So, you know, how, how big a generator can
you eventually run, and for maybe
can you run
you ITnr",,-'
many years
we guesstimate
gas
there? So you can do your
economics based on that.
big a system and what
be the payback
terms of the life of the, the system?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the, the, the lesser amount of gas than perhaps just a
burn might be more effective versus an assumption that the volume of gas would
be greater that would require the transition into electricity or whatever the hell it
might be?
MR. SHINYAMA: Yeah. I guess, I guess that would be true; however again, you know,
flaring it, again, you're not, it's just going into the atmosphere obviously. So I
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would imagine, you know, if you do have your piping in there it probably would
be prudent to do a test to see if in fact you have viable gas levels to generate
electricity and at what leveL And do the economics at that time to see whether
that would be profitable, or you know the better thing to do instead of just flaring
it to the atmosphere.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And finally, if in fact it does prove that the resource in
the landfill is, is a viable resource then I think I'd go back to Mr. Hokama's
reference. Then is the utility ready to participate and be a partner in the cost
factors that will be involved in the required pipes, valves, and everything else that
would be required at the landfill?
MR. SHINYAMA: I gotta be careful here, but I would say, yes, we would.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess, Mr. Shinyama, at this
point depending on what we need and I guess in terms of the amount of gas that
could come out. Would you have like an initial cost analysis at least from the
electric company's perspective?
MR. SHINYAMA: I think we did a preliminary analysis at one time when we were
talking to the Public Works Department just a general feel as to how much a
system would cost. And I, I, if I remember correctly it was two point something
million dollars for a size of somewhere in the neighborhood of
600 to 800 kilowatts generator. But again that is not having the gas analysis or
any of that information, just kind of going based on the size of the landfill and
kind of, you know, using some numbers based on that. So it's not, it's just a
rough estimate that was done.

MR. SEKI: The City and County, like I said, had that Kapaa Landfill operating till 2002.
There's talk about them going back and having a developer come in and, and try
and market the gas again and try and recover what gas might be left from that site.
But I think they have to go in and assess how much gas is still yet available in that
landfill.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: You mentioned that up until 2002 they stopped in 2002 and --
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MR. SEKI: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: --what were the reasons?
MR. SEKI: They had catastrophic failure for the turbine, so that, that was broken. And
also they noticed that, I think, the last five years the amount of gas was declining
to the turbine.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Sorry. Okay. We had a request for I
guess a more, to give us more specifics on what a catastrophic...
MR. SEKI: I'm not sure what exactly happened, but the turbine broke from what, from
what they said. So I'm, the reasons for that I'm not really sure why, but they said
they couldn't operate the turbine -VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I guess ...
MR. SEKI: --and it wasn't cost effective to replace the turbine.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So it was more catastrophic in terms of costs then, I guess.
MR. SEKI: Well, they had mechanical problem, major mechanical problems with the
turbine, so.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Tavares.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
one. I had
a
a waste-to-energy project

Members, any more questions?

there are no more Committee Member questions I
back that Maui Electric was entertaining
to do
on Maui. What is, what has happened

MR. SEKI:
was a Renewable
Renewable Hawaii is a
non-regulated subsidiary Hawaiian Electric. And the idea was try to stimulate
commercial development in certain technologies. That the project that, that you
mentioned Renewable Hawaii decided not to, to go in with that project developer
at that time. So right now we're not doing anything as far as solid waste on that,
on this island for that particular project.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you for that update.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Mr. Hokarna.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, as a follow-up for me, Chairman, either
gentleman from the utility. So has the utility looked at whether or not. .. and I, I
think Mr. Arakawa from our Public Works Depart ... , we have 300,350 tons of
waste a day that Maui generates? So with that type of tonnage does it make sense
for you to look at a hybrid methane gas, solid waste energy component as a pilot
project, because of proximity to the landfill as well as the methane at the other
cells of the land, current landfill area? Has that been a consideration?
MR. SEKI: As part of the IRP process, you know, we looked at a solid waste mass bum
kind of a technology and that was analyzed in, in the process. I think in the end
it's going to be a function of also what the County, what's it going to do with the
waste, the waste coming into the landfilL And usually it's like more like a landfill
issue if you don't have enough landfill space then what are you going to do to
reduce the volume going to that landfill like we have on, on Oahu.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And, you know, I appreciate your comments. I was
hoping that you would help drive maybe some of the options and say that if the
County does this with this 300-plus tons a day and you allow us to use the
methane and we can come up with a technology that if, ifthere's not enough solid
waste the methane gas would supplement the turbines for the steam generation to
tum those micro turbines to put energy in the grid. And that's something the
County should consider and we can make it cost effective. Why isn't, my
question then is why isn't the utility coming forward and sharing those type of
options to us today? Why are we the ones that are gonna have, always asking, are
you thinking about this, why aren't you doing this?
MR. SHINYAMA(?): I think the best person to probably answer that is our President,
Ed Reinhardt. So I'll have Ed answer that.
Okay.

your

position. Thank
MR.
President
Maui Electric Company. I
comments to
what Neal and
presented here. Number one, Maui Electric is certainly open to
renewable energy. We have been meeting with the, the Mayor and his Staff,
Milton on several occasions the last couple of years. Excuse me.
One of the challenges that we, we face, as we look at renewable energy, is we
need to identify the amount of the source that we have. And so one of the things
that we're trying to get from the County--and I'm sure Milton will provide that
sometime in the future--is the amount of waste that we have. And in order to do
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that and take, to take the next step we need to make sure that we get that
infonnation.
The request for proposal that Councilperson Tavares talked about, that RHI put
together, we identified the technology that we felt would be the best for a
waste-to-energy project here on Maui. The next step for us was to provide the,
that company, that developer with infonnation on the resources, and unfortunately
we weren't able to get to that point. And so that's why it stopped. We're at a
point to try to move forward.
The methane gas project, that project can move forward when, when we get some
agreement with the County. I think it can be separated from the waste-to-energy
and it should be, because the, you're already pretty much covering the first phase
of your Central Maui Landfill. And the gas will have to be either burned or
turned into some type of a source. And we believe and the consultants we've
talked to believe that the resource is there to generate anywhere from
500 kilowatts up to 1,500 kilowatts, and yes, we'll have a better idea of the source
once we get the gas flowing. But I think the County has already made the
decision to put in pipes to, to be able to take the methane gas out of the landfill
itself.
And as we look at the duration of or how long we believe the source will be, it
could be anywhere from 15 years and longer. But as we, as we use the methane
gas in the first phase the other phases of the landfill would be also covered or it'd
be turned to waste-to-energy. And so we would have taken care of that issue or
problem.
But to answer your, your question, Maui Electric is certainly willing and able to
look at opportunities that we can work with the County to develop renewable
energy. We are presently looking at using the potential of using biodiesel and
ethanol
our Maalaea Power Plant, which
allow us to burn renewable
energy sources out there. Again, we need to look at the available source, so
we ... you
once we convert over we
want to run
a
not
having the,
But we have commissioned a study internally and we are a phase right now of,
of trying to do more testing on our units to bum biodiesel and potentially looking
at burning the ethanol in our combustion turbines. Our first Waena unit or Waena
unit across the Maui Landfill we've also have in our pennit, environmental pennit
to burn ethanol, a blend of ethanol in there. Now as we see the development of
that technology and availability of the resource there's a potential of burning
100 percent ethanol in our combustion turbines. But we won't know that until
we, we detennine what the available resource is.
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We certainly would like to work with our local business partners in addition to the
COUfity to use a product from our agriculture that could turn ag into ethanol or
biodiesel that will allow us to go with that business. And if we can, if we can get
the raw product and convert it into oil, biodiesel or biodiesel we certainly would
want to use it here from our local businesses rather than trying to bring it in from
outside of the State.
But we're certainly committed as a company to look at renewable energy. As
Neal noted, Hawaiian Electric Company is advertising renewable energy and
hitting a milestone of 500 megawatts of renewable energy. Well, Maui Electric is
part of that. They're cOUfiting pretty heavily on Maui Electric to provide
renewable energy for the State of Hawaii. And we certainly look at ourselves as,
as you do in Maui COUfity that we tend to lead in, in certain areas, and we believe
that we will be a leader in renewable energy. And we hope to have the County
working with us also on this. I hope that answers your question on our
commitment, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Reinhardt, I am happy that you took the mike. I
think it's great when the number one person of our utility comes forward and
shares your company's position. So I appreciate it very much. So just quickly for
clarification, Chairman, if you will?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: On Mr. Reinhardt's statements earlier. When you
mentioned, I think, from the landfill up to 15,000 kilowatts? Okay. You're an
energy guy, you understand that real good. For people like me, tell me how many
households so, 'cause I can understand if you tell me, that can take care of the
energy needs of 20,000 homes, I can UfIderstand that. But if you tell me
15 kilowatts it's-MR.

Okay.
vague to

MR. REINHARDT: Wen, we normally use a figure of. .. we used to use 2 kilowatts per
household. But now it's up to the average of about three, three and a half and in
some cases even larger than that, five, six megawatts, kilowatts with the new
larger homes that are being built. So if we use the average of three kilowatts,
1,500 kilowatts a plant, so you're talking about, probably about 500 residential
homes that could be powered by this particular project.
But I think as we look at our total consumption here on the island our goal is to
add whatever we can in renewable energy. A few months ago, you heard about
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the Makila Hydro, the hydro plant out in Lahaina, 500 kilowatts. They are right
now going through testing to actually come online, and when that comes online
it's another 500 kilowatts.
But as we look at our total renewable energy we're, our concern is we want to put
on renewable energy project whether they're small, 500 kilowatts or
1,500 kilowatts, but I think as we take, take it in small incremental steps we will
ultimately get to the point where we want to be, which is to number one, hit the,
the State goal for our RPS renewable energy portfolio standard, which is
20,20 percent of renewable energies in the year 2020. We're already at a point
where we're going to, you know, come close to it. We're about 15 percent right
now so and it's 2006. So we're heading in the right direction.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I can tie this to our agendized item, Mr. Reinhardt
as our utility president. The 500 megawatts that is, this, your, your energy goal
for your company how much of that is being expected from Maui Electric,
100 megawatts?
MR. REINHARDT: Well right now, we haven't clearly defined the breakdown for each
company; however, as you can see with the addition of the Kaheawa Wind
project, 30 megawatts; the Auwahi project out in Ulupalakua, 45 to 50 megawatts.
We're also talking about pump storage hydro which would allow us to add some
firmpower to our system. It could range another, you know, 50 megawatts.
So we are trying to step out of the box and look at projects that could certainly
help Maui County, Maui Electric Company to be more renewable energy friendly.
And we are, you know, when, when companies, IPPs, independent power
producers have an interest in coming in to do business with us we are opening our
doors and listening to what they have to say. And if it makes sense we are
certainly interested taking it a step further.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
reason I ask that, Mr. Reinhardt, and let's say
Statewide 500
goal
Company's
goal
be 200 which is
percent just
which I
say is more
than .. .I mean I would expect Oahu to do a lot more.
let's say Maui is very,
more successful than the other utilities. I'm,
trying to get an understanding,
you can share this morning, what you expect with the County's participation.
What can from the County our landfills or what not provide to mat. .. , to hit, to be
part of that 200 megawatts program? So if from the landfills or not you expect
the County to participate and maybe we can get 50 megawatts through County
properties and programs. That would help us because we all know it comes down
to budgeting, eventually.
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MR. REINHARDT: That's a very good question. The answer to that is we, we need to
understand the resource available, the amount of waste you have. But we
are ...with the technology that we have today you don't have to develop a large
facility like H-POWER on Oahu. You can do it in smaller phases and as, as you
grow we can add to it, so we can develop phases at the Waena site. We can put in
a facility that can handle the amount of resource we have now. And as Maui
County continues to grow and there's more waste then there's another phase that
can be added to it.
So we have technology now which would allow us to do that. A few years ago
when we, you know, maybe eight, five, eight years ago, the technology was you
needed a larger furnace to make sense of and taking care of the overall efficiency.
But now you really don't need to do that. I think the technology is available.
But to answer your question on how much we can actually buy or purchase from
the County or how much can a County add to our overall renewable energy? At
this point it's a little difficult to give a number, because we don't really
understand the amount of resource that you have. But I would imagine that it
would be, you know, 15 to 20 megawatts hopefully available. Of course you have
the resources from Lahaina and also, you know, in other parts of Maui County.
But as you bring it into Central Maui that's certainly something that would add up
to, hopefully, a firmpower renewable energy that would certainly help us.
You know, we'd love to install more wind farms but wind farms are not...when
the wind is not blowing... (CHANGE TAPE)...but in the last month or so when
we've had Kona winds, the wind farm was basically putting out zero ...zero
kilowatts of power. However when it's blowing it's been very solid at about
25 to 30 megawatts of power, so. And it, it has certainly helped us.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Reinhardt. Thank you,
Chairman,
your indulgence.
Members,
as
presentation.
MR. REINHARDT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Reinhardt. Questions for the Public Works
Director? Member Mateo followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa, I guess
you already have been in discussion with the utility companies. So in terms of the
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Department's long range planning processes where is the Department in looking
at presentations like we just had with the utilities? Where are you?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKA WA: Mr. Chairman, the ... first of all let me say, I think many of the
questions that you've raised this morning are very, very good questions. The
presentation that you've heard from Maui Electric is basically just the beginning
stages of what do we do? Shall we pursue landfill gas-to-energy; shall we do
waste-to-energy; or you know something in between; or... you know? These are
all questions that we need to flesh out the details on.
And generally what we want to do ... of course, we've got funded in our
Department an update of our Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan, which
we've just started the update on. That should flesh out the blueprint for our entire
Solid Waste Division as a whole. We also intend to take a look at these issues of
waste-to-energy or landfill gas-to-energy and what the direction, overall, long
term direction would be.
Now, as far as proceeding on landfill gas-to-energy it was mentioned that, you
know, we are also doing the closure of Phase I and II presently_ And we are also
landfilling Phase IV -A and we hope to start Phase IV -B soon as well. So the
question arises whether or not we're going to be proceeding with the landfill
gas-to-energy project on that portion alone. Because once the landfill is filled
with trash, the trash decomposes and gas is produced. And it's the gas that has to
be flared or burned and it's a resource, so we have to decide what to do with that
resource.
Now, what. .. we have hired a consultant to actually--we have to put in the
pipes--we've hired the consultant to actually put the pipes with an eye toward
possibly doing a landfill gas-to-energy project at some later point time. Once
the
the pipes are in, we'll have a better idea of the amount of gas
produce
gas
the
produces.
A<UJlU.1JLH

Once we
that,
probably
we'd like to
is come
to the
Council, ask for additional monies to hire some consultants to help us do an
much like what the Big Island has done. There are not only engineering or
technical data that will be needed to help us make the decision--by "us" I mean
the County make a decision--but there's also financial data.
Obviously, if we enter into an agreement with any kind of vendor to provide this
service to the County we want to obviously make sure that, you know, this is the
best deal for the County and for the taxpayers. So, so generally that's what we
have in mind. We want to hire some help to help us make the best decision
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possible on, on landfill gas-to-energy. And that decision may also be that, you
know, perhaps it's not economically feasible or there's some other obstructions to
it or what have you. But we, we need to have someone to help us make that
decision.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, so, Mr. Arakawa, then because you're required to
actually put the pipe in to deal with the gas in the landfill and because the
Department's consideration of an RFP in looking in this direction, then the
Department... would it be my assumption that the Department is actually looking
at a potential savings in terms of your operation of your landfill?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's possible but at this point in time, without, you know, the, the
actual project specifics that will be hard to tell. But that was the initial thought as
far as why we would want to get into something like this. There are obviously
environmental benefits, which I mentioned earlier, plus there's also the possibility
of selling this resource to Maui Electric and possibly realizing some income to the
County.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and these considerations then would in no way
hinder the progress of the additional cells that you need to get done on the landfill
now?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as IV-A.. .IV-B which -COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: Yes.
MR. ARAKA WA: --is the next cell at Central Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
MR.

we

to

nrn,rop.,;·rI

So

IS

on
at

MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
Yeah.
Mr. Chairman, my question was more related
to ... earlier we had a member of the public who wanted to testify on the item. I
was wondering if you were going to entertain that now --
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yes. I will -VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: --before we proceed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --as soon as you have no more questions for the Director or
Corporation Counsel.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then I'll calIon the testifier.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You shared in your response to Mr. Mateo that you
have a current consultant assisting your Division, Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKA WA: Yes. The consultant is helping us to do the, the piping installation for
the closure of Phase I and II. That's part of the Phase I and II closure plans and
construction.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And that is just...then that's the, the full
scope of this consultant's participation for your Division? Or are they also going
to be part of helping you to scope out the RFP for this master plan or upgrade of
the program itself?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. The scope of the consultant's work is basically to install the
II to be compliance
piping and the flare system
closure of Phase I
with applicable
and DOH regulations.
COUNCILMEMBER
Okay.
is
or
particularly your Solid Waste Division status
regards to the monies that the
Council gave you to do this upgrade of your Integrated Master Plan for the Solid
Waste program?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as the update of the Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan
we have basically .. .I believe we've just selected a consultant to start that process.
The funding became available as of, I believe, July and so you know we've had to
go through the procurement process and we've just selected the consultant.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then can you inform the Committee today who you
have selected or is that not. ..until you sign a contract you prefer not to share that
information?
MR. ARAKAWA: I believe the selection process has been made on a preliminary basis.
As you know, you go through the qualifications-based selection process, and we
don't talk fees. The consultant is selected, then we negotiate the fees. And the
fees have not been selected and no contract has been signed yet, so I, I would
prefer not to mention that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I can understand your, your current position. Has
your Department provided our utility, Maui Electric with comments on the current
update of the Integrated Resource Plan process regarding this particular subject
area?
MR. ARAKAWA: I know we've gone to several meetings on that IRP process. I'm not
certain if we had specifically mentioned anything regarding landfill gas-to-energy
or waste-to-energy. However, we have been in discussions with Maui Electric
about both of those topics separately. And I know Maui Electric is interested in
entering into some sort of. . .I know they will be involved in some fashion with
whatever alternative energy initiative the County chooses to pursue.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Has your Division talked to Mr. Kobayashi,
our Energy Officer?
MR. ARAKAWA: We've talked with him briefly. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And currently, well, I do know, I know, currently, he
speaks for the County_ So I was just wondering whether or not he's taking into
consideration and providing comments on your Department's behalf.
MR. ARAKA WA:
at this point,
I said,
fairly early in
process
we've looked at possibilities and, you
we can get, certainly, Kal
more
as we go further down
road and, and get into more of the
details. But at this point,
I said,
know, we're
in the beginning part of
the process and we're fleshing out various alternatives and pros and cons and, you
know, those, those sorts of things. But once we start moving forward, yes, we'll
get Kal more involved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And one last quick question, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Corp. Counsel, my guess is the County's mineral or
gas we have jurisdiction and ownership? It is not a concern with State, the State
regarding mining rights and what not?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: My understanding, just very generally from the discussion, is that the, the
gas would be produced primarily from the, from the trash that's at the landfill.
And in that case that is a County's resource because in our landfill, we collected
it, et cetera. The State oftentimes in deeds and such will reserve the right for
mining, and so if it were minerals and such in certain circumstances, yes, that
would be the State. But it's my understanding that the resource that we're talking
about here is primarily the trash, in which case it would be the County's resource
that we could use to pursue this project.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, any more questions for
either Corporation Counselor the Public Works Environmental Management
Manager at this time? If not, thank you very much. At this time, the Chair would
like to call on Mr. Shepherd to provide public testimony on PW-39.
MR. SHEPHERD: My name is Glenn Shepherd and I want to thank the Council for
making those penetrating questions, you're up on things more than I thought. The
integrated resource prospects program by the Maui Electric assures that we're
going to have the continuous supply of electricity. Yet they have positioned two
of their primary electrical units within tsunami zones at 10 and 11 feet. That kind
of flies in the face of their objectives. But this particular system is a very viable
process, it's been done for years, something like 40 years by the Department of
Power and Water at, in Los Angeles. It's a continuing process.
and keep
thing to a
have a viable company
resource to Maui Electric.
go on
outside and get a company,
be
provide the gasoline, the gas for Maui Electric to generate electricity.
Now, another offshoot of this particular prospect is that they want to do this
primarily at Mount Opalapala. Well, there's other places, too. There is
Makawao, there's out by Lahaina, there's a couple ... and there's one down the
road here. All those are perspective gas sources. They can be tapped. If they
don't tap it, let somebody else tap it. Don't let the County do it, they're really
high cost. But it's a viable system done for years.
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Now, if you want to get a little more input on the way this thing works I urge you
to go to the computer and call up CPST, it's called Capstone Turbine. It's an
outfit in California, Chatsworth, California is providing these, the machinery that
works and what not to be able to do this. But providing the gas is something
that's, that's Maui County's gas. And you should get something for it, it should
be, the, put into the total mix. Just don't give that gas away. That's worth money.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Shepherd. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you again, Mr. Shepherd. Members, if there is no more
questions for the Department, Corporation Counsel, the Chair would like to defer
this item if there's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. At this time are there anyone out in the
public that would like to give public testimony at this time? Seeing no one
coming forward, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .
. . . CLOSE PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before we go into our next agenda item, Chair
would like to call a mid-morning break. So we will reconvene at 10:40.
Recess. . . .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:25 a.m.
10:47 a.m.

No.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. .(gavel) . .. The Public Works Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you very much for that break. Members, the second item on
our agenda this morning is Public Works Item 18, outdoor lighting. This
morning's discussions we'll focus on the correspondence from
Frank "Bud" Pikrone, General Manager, Wailea Community Association, who's
transmitted a bill entitled, "A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Title 20, Maui
County Code, by Adding a New Chapter Relating to Outdoor Lighting."
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The purpose of the draft bill is to establish outdoor lighting standards, reduce light
pollution, and enhance the night sky for astronomy research and prevention,
preservation of Hawaiian life. This morning we do have Mr. Arakawa, our Public
Works Director, but before I call on Mr. Arakawa to give us an opening comment,
the Chair would like to recognize Captain Matsuoka of the Maui Police
Department, John Buck of the Parks Department, as well as members of Maui
Electric that are here this morning. If we need to call them they'll be resource
persons.
At this time, the Chair would like to call upon Mr. Arakawa to provide us with
some opening comments.
And basically, Members, we'll be reviewing
Mr. Arakawa's comments in regards to the memo we received from the
Department. Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: TharIk you, Mr. Chair. As you've noted, we have submitted
comments to the Public Works Committee dated August 9,2006. And it's a
rather lengthy letter, but instead of going over all of the points I, I wonder if I can
just highlight some of the major points for you.
First off, the Committee asked about a cost analysis regarding the proposed bill.
And generally this is a question which is somewhat difficult to answer
defmitively. However, I can give you some rather ballpark. .. some ballpark
estimates. From a personnel standpoint we've mentioned that we need to hire
another electrical inspector, basically an SR-19 type of person; a Boards and
Commissions Secretary, an SR-15; and a reclassification of a Specialty Plans
Examiner 2 position, which is an SR-15 to possibly an Electrical Engineer II,
which is an SR-20 and, or an Electrical Engineer III which is an SR-22. And
there would also be a need for a vehicle for the Electrical Inspector.
That's as far as the personnel issues. As far as a number, the number
shields
that would need to
installed, you might recall that Public Works'
Administrative Rules require installation of shields or full cutoff lenses, and there
are still approximately 3,800 fixtures
need to be retro-fitted with these
shields. And at a cost about $200 per shield
approximate cost to
the light fixtures on County roads would be about $760,000.
You know, separate correspondence, just as a matter of comparison, MECO has
also provided rough figures on what it would cost to provide Low Pressure
Sodium street lighting. And their records show that there are 4,218 fixtures in
their books. The current replacement cost for the head and the lamp for each
fixture is about $1,506. So rough total cost to change all the County street
lighting to Low Pressure Sodium would be about $6,400,000.
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I would note though that the bill that's before the Committee allows shielded
High Pressure Sodium lighting within 50 feet of intersections to remain. So if the
bill passes you will likely see a combination of High Pressure Sodium and Low
Pressure Sodium fixtures on any given street. So the actual current cost may be
estimated to be somewhere between the cost to shield the streetlights and the cost
to implement LPS if the Council adopts the current bill.
Another factor to keep in mind though, the Maui Electric cost as 1. .. cost
estimates as I read it is to replace the head and the lamp. There also may be
instances where we may want to replace the whole arm depending on, you know,
the type of fixture that we have available. So if that is involved that may involve
also additional cost for the County.
Another factor to keep in mind is that most of the current light poles are 30 feet in
height, and if you visit some of the newer subdivisions you'll notice that the light
poles there are shorter. They're 20 feet in height and usually with full cutoff
lenses. This is basically the new standard for local roads. And the poles ... since
the poles are lower with these cutoff lenses the light distribution is a more limited
conical area which is directed downward from the lens.
And since this light coverage is more limited compared to the 30 foot poles with
the old High Pressure Sodium, sodium cobra head fixtures we are uncertain as to
whether perhaps additional requests for lighting may be submitted by, by
neighborhoods. And if LPS is introduced that also provides another factor which
perhaps could lead to additional requests for, for street lighting. So just keep in
mind that the figures that you have are just ballpark figures at this point.
With regard to the bill that's before you itself I do have .. .1' d like to highlight
several comments.
I would like to request that the Committee revise
Section 20.35.025 of the bill which gives Public Works employees the right to
enter onto private property
the purpose of inspecting or investigating. We
believe that this may infringe upon the rights of property owners, and instead we
have suggested language consistent
the current Electrical Code. And this
basically states that upon presentation
credentials the inspector may enter
private property to perform his inspection; however,
owner does not consent
a warrant or other legal authorization is needed. And you have the exact language
in, in our comments.
Also, Section 20.35.030 of the draft bill requires the replacement of most existing
light fixtures within 10 years. We would note that this will be a substantial cost to
hotels, resorts, shopping centers, commercial buildings, parking lots, driving
ranges, including the County of Maui to replace not only street lighting but
building exterior lighting, parking lot lighting, and park and athletic facilities
lighting. Even with the DSA stuff being added I just note for the Committee's
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consideration that it will be difficult to enforce the provisions of this ordinance to
make everyone comply within the 10 year period.
One big concern that we had was that we would recommend that residential
outdoor lighting fixtures be exempt from this ordinance.
Currently,
Section 20.35.030D requires shielding so that no light source is visible from
abutting properties. We feel that this would be nearly impossible to enforce.
Many homeowners have the incandescent lighting fixtures with the clear glass
lenses, and these types of fixtures are readily available at retail stores and can be
replaced or altered without a permit. So it would be just a nightmare for us to try
to enforce something like that.
And fifth, the Section 20.35.080 of the bill proposes the creation of an Outdoor
Lighting Standards Committee. And there are several provisions in the bill which
should be clarified such as establishing a set number of members of the
Committee, specifying the duties of the Committee, and the criteria for
decision-making. However, more fundamentally, the duties and responsibilities
of the proposed Outdoor Lighting Standards Committee seem to overlap with the
already existing Street Lighting Committee. So we believe that there should be a
consolidation of functions into one committee and that makes sense to us.
I would also like to note that we have implemented a test of Low Pressure Sodium
street lighting at locations in Pukalani, Kihei, Kahului, and Lahaina. And a press
release was done on August 14, 2006, inviting the public to take a look at the LPS
streetlights and provide feedback to our Department. I have received 34 e-mails
and letters in favor of LPS lighting; one letter from a former Big Island resident
against LPS; and a transmittal and documentation from a lighting sales outlet
transmitting information which was generated by the Illuminating Engineer
Society of North America. And all this documentation has been transmitted to the
Committee and is in your binders for your review. That concludes my comments.
PONTANILLA:

questions

the

Good morning,
MOLINA:
you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Arakawa. Do you have any comments on the issue of the disposal of the Low
Pressure Sodium lights if that is the direction this Council would take? How
would we address that? I know there's some issues with regarding that disposal
in other areas. Can you comment on that?
MR. ARAKAWA: I, I have no comment on that, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. You mentioned the light, the committee, the proposed
Outdoor Lighting Committee that's in the bilL Street Lighting Committee could
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handle that responsibility, the existing one? It would be like reinventing the
wheel if we were to ...(inaudible) ...
MR. ARAKA WA: It would make sense to us to consolidate the functions into one
committee. Whether you keep the Outdoor Lighting Standards Committee and
get rid of the Street Lighting Committee or just fold this additional duties into the
existing Street Lighting Committee, one or the other, I think, makes sense to us.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: And the removal of the residential component is basically, in
your view, would be an enforcement nightmare, I guess?
MR. ARAKAWA: From our view, yes. It would be very, very difficult to try to enforce
something like that when basically we're talking about porch lights, those types of
situations. And the way the current bill is worded it prohibits light trespass past
the property line. And something like that obviously you'd have to enforce at
night. We'd, we'd have to go up, send our inspectors out at night. And
preferably we'd not want to have people sneaking around people's properties past
midnight, because we have received a complaint about somebody's porch light
being on. And what happens if you tum it off, what happens when the inspector
leaves? And then, you know, I think it would just be an enforcement nightmare
to, to try to include this in the ordinance for us to enforce.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Finally, Mr. Chairman, do you see it if, if the
residential component were included would you see it something more like better
to be a complaint-driven thing rather than having inspectors going out and, you
know, looking for peoples [sic], you know, who have stray lights. I'm just
mentioning that as a way of, I guess, to ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...the enforcement
of this. This would be something that might be better that is complaint-driven
rather than, you know, having the so-called light police to go actively look at,
look, go to people's houses to see if there's illegal lighting or stray lights.
MR. ARAKAWA: It would, it
have to be complaint-driven, because we simply
not
the
go out and enforce it on a regular basis. But even with
be problematic
our view,
complaint-driven type of situation it
because let's say we do receive a complaint at, the middle of the night, we have
to send the inspector out, you know. Some, you know the complainant could
easily just tum off the light. Then we have no proof that the light was in fact on,
do in fact have to go back and check if the light was shielded. Let's say he
shields it, the inspector leaves, there's no building permit, he can just change it
back. You know, it would be just an enforcement nightmare to try to, to conform
with the terms of the current bill.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa, so one of your recommendations over here was
to remove the residential component?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Mr. Hokama.

Thank you.

Members, more questions for the Director?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Did your Department, I guess, observe the four pilot
intersections, and have you come up with a Departmental comment for the
Committee? I know you've transmitted e-mails and comments from, from
various sources, but I did not see one from the Department that says that, you
know, you folks have no objections; doesn't work well, so we're not supportive.
You have anything to share with the Members of this Committee this morning,
Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, as far as whether or not we are for or
against LPS we, our comments are basically just on the comments on the bill, and
ifLPS is adopted then we'd just like to see the bill amended to make sure that it is
workable. But as far as whether or not LPS is desirable we have no position one
way or the other. Our comments just mentioned that if we do change to LPS then
there's cost issues that we have to address as well. But other than that, you know,
we, we have taken no position one way or the other.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is the administrative, excuse me, the Administration's
Environmental Coordinator in your Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: He's physically located on the third floor but he's actually part of the,
the Mayor's office.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mayor's office.
comment, Mr. Chainnan?

we

not

None.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

you

much. I'm done.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Director? I
too have one. In regards to the test, especially the one on Papa Avenue, because
of the spacing of the streetlights--the direct light from the LPS looks real good-but
the spacing between the street lighting is such that it creates a dark spot. So what
is the County standard in regards to providing lights that...the safety factor?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, that's a very good question and actually that's part of
what I alluded to in our comments and part of what the Street Lighting Committee
currently does. With the cobra head lighting the lighting spreads out and the light
distribution covers a greater area. But with shielding and the cutoff lenses you're
going to have more of a conical type of distribution of the streetlight. With the
current spacing of the poles you're going to end up where you going to have less
of the street area being actually lit up because of the shielding or the, the conical, I
mean, the shielding or the cutoff lenses because of the conical nature of the light
distribution. So, we may see additional requests for installation of additional
poles depending on neighborhood requests.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank: you. Members, we do have members from the different
Departments if you want to ask any questions regarding their recommendations or
their concerns in regards to the outdoor lighting bill. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just one quick question for our Director -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and if he's able to give us a response. Kula
Highway, King Kekaulike High School, there was a portion that had, I guess, a
3D-foot high streetlights, very bright, so then I guess the community had a
concern, then they just went every other pole. And now it's all blacked out. How
is that achieved if that was all part of standards of road lighting? Are you aware
of how they accomplished that?
MR. ARAKA WA: I'm not certain how the State had handled that, but the bill that you
have before you, of course, would deal with only street lightings on, street
lighting on, on County roadways and wouldn't affect State highways. Although I
understand on the Big Island although the ordinance only pertains to County roads
the State has also implemented some LPS fixtures
as
So
Council
passes something on LPS then I suppose we could talk with the State about that.
But as far as
particulars on Kula Highway I
know there was some issues
that the, that
commUflity wanted basically less streetlight
how DOT
made their decision
not certain.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay_ Just a follow-up, please, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Corporation Counsel, so let's say we did the same
thing on a County road. Does the County knowingly increase its liability issues
by doing so regarding road safety?
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MS. YOUNG: Our, our, our standard generally for, for roads is that there are roads, for
COUflty roads we would implement safety measures. So in other words, the
lighting would be primarily for safety, would address safety issues and such. So
usually we achieve that in one of two ways. We either could use standards that
have been provided by a professional organization or standards that have been
promulgated by, by the governing agency that, that handles that. Or we could
achieve that by having a study done in order to assess how we would space the
lights and the height and et cetera in a safe, in, in a manner that would address
safety issues.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Have we done that since we went from 30 feet to
20 feet as the Director shared in his earlier comments?
MR. ARAKAWA: The 20 feet standard is basically for local roads, it's going to be on
local roads. As far as the safety issue you, you touched on, I think, a very valid
point. If we are talking about less light distribution and if you, if you really
wanted to have a more thorough look at the safety issues we should probably have
more, you know, probably a more thorough study done, done by people who are
experts in illumination per se. And one of the organizations that came before the
Committee that IESNA represented some expert testimony on lighting before, you
know, before this COUflciL But safety is an issue, I think you raise a valid, valid
point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, if the Chairman is going to ask us to make a
decision today I will like to be the best informed person as possible to make a
decision. I'm done, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. The Chair would like to call on
Captain Matsuoka. Because as you do know, Members, we did receive a letter
from the Chief of Police, Mr. Phillips, actually signed by our new Deputy Police
Chief Mr. Yabuta regards to outdoor lighting and
concerns for public as
could
well as officer safety_ So, Captain Matsuoka, if
appreciate
MR. MATSUOKA: Good morning, COUflcil Members, Chairman. Since the lights have
been installed I, I've gone to the two other sites personally on several different
nights, one in Pukalani and also the one in Kahului. I guess after taking a look at
the lights, first of all, I think it's a little difficult for us or for me anyway to make
a good comparison. When you look at the Low Pressure Sodium lights they give
off a different, I guess for lack of a better word, a different footprint of the light
that actually hits the, the groUfld. And I think it, I believe it's because of the
shape of the fixture itself. The, the light that's given off by the Low Pressure
Sodium is more oblong compared to the circular light that's given off by the High
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Pressure Sodium. And again I think it's just a matter of the shape of the fixture.
So, but I think that was one of the things I noticed.
But the second thing I think was that when you look at the Low Pressure Sodium
lights the way they were installed compared to the High Pressure, there's a lot of
gap or a larger amount of dark area between the, the lights. And again because I
Carlllot compare it with something side-by-side with a High Pressure Sodium and
whether the shielding of a High Pressure Sodium light would make much
difference in how the light is distributed, it's difficult to make a comparison.
Alright.
But I do believe that with these Low Pressure Sodium lights, if you put them in
there again because of those additional dark areas or larger dark areas between the
lights, you're going to have an issue, public safety issue as far as people walking
during the evening hours or during darkness. We definitely have a large
contingency of people that do walk during the early morning hours, and I think a
lot of them are more toward your elderly people. And, again I think you'd be
surprised at how many people actually do take early morning walks. You know,
if you actually would drive out there at three, four o'clock in the morning. So in,
in view of that I would think if the, if the Council decides to pass this ordinance or
adopt this ordinance I think, defmitely, our position would be that you would need
more light fixtures to compensate for these darker areas.
Again, color distortion, you know, still is and will continue to be a major issue
for, for us. You know, looking at it again after visiting the sites, watching
vehicles pass, and also just seeing people walk under it, or, and I even took
different colored items for myself just to see what it would look like. And
basically you have two, two shades of color really from grey to black and from
yellow to tan. And that's the only two shades, really, that you get out of the Low
Pressure Sodium. So for, for me it's almost like, almost like watching just
everything in a black-and-white
Again,
Pressure
lights, and
shielding
Pressure Sodium is what we
compromise to.
again I
would like to repeat that just from the presentation that Mr. Maberry gave on
last presentation or last Committee hearing is that you can see that there's a huge
difference between unshielded and shielded High Pressure Sodium lights.
And lastly, I think I'd like to just say that the Police Department is not against,
you know, trying to help sea life or the turtles and seabirds when it comes to light
pollution along the shoreline. That's all I have, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Captain Matsuoka. Members, any questions for the
Police Department? Mr. Molina.
- 35 -

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2006

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Captain Matsuoka.
So just to clarify some of your, early earlier statements. So the Police Department
would basically if we get rid of the LPS component in the bill and just go with
shielded lighting fixtures on the HPS, the High Pressure Sodium, that is
something the Police Department could, well, not necessarily agree with but live
with? And you wouldn't be taking this stance opposing this bill? That's the
primary concern, am I correct, is the LPS?
MR. MATSUOKA: Yeah. And, again, you know, we're only, we're only concerned
about the public lighting, you know. We're not necessarily too concerned about
the residential stuff, you know, I mean, what's on the actual people's houses,
residences and stuff like that. We're just strictly talking about public lighting.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And on the early morning walkers you've been seeing,
I guess, you've been getting reports about you seeing a frequency of the amount
of people doing that? Because I don't know for me if! go out walking in the dark
no matter what I'm going to talk a flashlight. So you see a lot of folks who don't
have, are not carrying flashlights and they're just. ..
MR. MATSUOKA: Well, no, I mean there's, there's always been a big contingency of
early morning walkers, I mean, for years and years even when I was a patrolman.
I think it's increased and yeah, I believe that they do have ... a lot of them carry
flashlights, a lot of them have reflective clothing that they wear or, you know,
they don't wear dark clothing. But again you look at the gaps of the darkness
in-between I think that's still going to be a factor and not just, not just from
automobiles or the road part of it but also being possible victims of some kind of
assault.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Have we had any reports of assaults
the early morning
years past?
hours, and if we have has it been an increase
MATSUOKA:
summer we
VICE-CHAIR

not

summer

past

morning assaults?

MR. MATSUOKA: --sex assaults that occurred.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Captain Matsuoka, in regards to
commercial parking areas are you, is the Department concerned in regards to the
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type of lighting that if we were to go to Low Pressure Sodium would that be a
concern for the Department?
MR. MATSUOKA: Well, as far as the amount of lighting, yes, because for us anytime
you have areas of darkness that just seems to have people congregate in those
areas. And the more darkness that you have the more these people are going to
congregate, and again it's going to be more of a issue for our patrolmen to get out
there and, and, you know, try to keep them out of those areas. So the more light
that we have, you know, is beneficial for us, anyway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And can you expound on officer safety?
MR. MATSUOKA: Well again, you know, talking to or listening to Mr. Maberry he's
saying that the amount of lumens is the same with the Low Pressure as it is High
Pressure. Again, you know I don't have any device that measures that, so I can't
really give you any kind of empirical data from my standpoint on whether there's
more light, less light. Again, it's just a perception that we have, you know, and I
don't think it's not just a matter of officer safety, but I think it's, it, it definitely
affects, I think, or, or will affect our ability to investigate cases and all the way
down to our court testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One more question. In regards to the combination
of both High Pressure Sodium shielded and a combination of Low Pressure
Sodium shielded, is there any concerns regarding the Department if we were to go
to a combination of both?
MR. MATSUOKA: You talking about everywhere or just like ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, intersections.
MR. MATSUOKA:
right now I
think
be able to comment on that as
far as there was a combination. Now I know
ordinance it says that
Pressure Sodium
be kept
itself. And again our
concern, again, is that traffic accidents
only occur at intersections. They can
occur anywhere, and whatever ability that we have to help identify, you know, a
hit-and-run anything, I think, a hit-and-run vehicle, stuff like that, that can help us
identify that vehicle, you know, we're going to be ...or lighting that prevents us
or hinders us in our investigation we would be against.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? None? Thank you
very much, Captain Matsuoka. At this time, the Chair would like to call on the
power company, either Mr. Shinyama or Mr. Takahata.
Thank you,
Mr. Shinyama, for being here this morning. I got a question in regards to the
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letter that was sent to us in regards that to Low Pressure Sodium is not, not, not a
tariff item. Can you expound on that?
MR. SHINYAMA: If you look at our standard tariff right now from Maui Electric we
have certain fixtures that identify that we have a fixture cost--excuse me--and
because we don't have Low Pressure Sodium that's not identified in the tariff. So
if, if Low Pressure Sodium is to be put on as a tariff item in the Rate Schedule F
we would have to develop a schedule, a rate schedule for that. And that is
normally a process that we would go through, work with our Hawaiian Electric
people to develop the rates and then go to through the Public Utilities
Commission for approval.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the representative
from Maui Electric? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: As we understand it, Mr. Shinyama, the process you
just mentioned about, I guess, some people would compare it to like a zoning
request, it could take some time going through a full Public Utilities rate structure
review and final decision?
MR. SHINYAMA: On this one here I'm not exactly sure, but because it would be
modifying a particular item and maybe adding an item or two and I don't
necessarily think that, that would take a long period of time. I can't give you
exact time frame, though. But I can, I don't see it as where ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Less than a year, more than a year, Mr. Shinyama?
MR. SHINYAMA: I would say we could probably do it within a year.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Within one year?
MR. SHINYAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER
And you
forgive me,
trying to
and I
was asking my Committee colleague, Mr. Molina.
amount power it takes
to light the fixture makes no difference whether it's a Low Pressure or a High
Pressure fixture?
MR. SHINYAMA: It doesn't matter between Low Pressure or High Pressure, it just
matters as to what size wattage lamp you use. Right now on the High Pressure
Sodiums I believe we have on our system 100 watt or 150 watt High Pressure
Sodium lamps. So that would take, that's the power consumption. Now Low
Pressure has different type of wattages also and again because we don't have a
tariff I'm not sure exactly what we would use. However, for the examples that we
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used on the four different sites that we used, we used the 135 watt Low Pressure
Sodium lamp. So as far as the power consumption usage-wise it was somewhere
in-between the 100 and the 150 High Pressure Sodium. So, again, that was just an
assumption that we did as far as using the 135 watt. I believe there, there is
different sizes of Low Pressure, you could go a little smaller or, or a little higher
in terms of size.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Was that to match the category, as we've been
informed, regarding lumens or the brightness?
MR. SHINYAMA: No. It was just more in relation to getting the, the wattage, the, the,
the power wattage coming out of it. It's not, it wasn't related to lumens exactly.
Yeah. We didn't do that calculation. We just trying to find something that was
comparable to the 100 watt or the 150 watt, you know, we didn't want to choose
like, you know, a really, something like a 300 watt Low Pressure or something
like that. We were.. .'cause we were looking at the lumens output, we were just
looking at the wattage. 'Cause that's the way we would develop our tariff, too,
depending on the, the wattage of the lamp.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you couldn't comment to the Committee this
morning that there would be potential energy cost savings to the County for our
utility bills throughout the County then depending on what the tariff ends up
with? At this point in time, if it's the same--Iet's say the Commission makes a
decision that it is going to remain equal the tariff--there's potentially no savings to
this County?
MR. SHINYAMA: Again, we haven't developed a rate so it would be hard to say.
What, what would be factored in into the rates would be the initial cost of the
fixtures; again the, the whatever wattage or power consumption that's taken into
effect; and then also I believe we will look at issues like the life cycle of High
Pressure versus Low Pressure because
Rate Schedule F is based on a fixture
charge and an estimated usage charge. So we would factor all those things into
the rates.
My understanding is that the High Pressure Sodium lamps, at
time, has a
longer life cycle than the
Pressure Sodium lamps. So in essence if you're
talking from a maintenance scenario you might be changing out the Low
Pressures a little bit more frequently. So we would have to factor those issues in
when we develop the rate. So I cannot tell you exactly what the rate will be and
depending on what size LPS is determined that would all be factored in.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are you able to share with us what your sister utility
on the Big Island, Hawaii Electric Light Company and the tariff they use
to ... when Hilo did the 100 percent conversion?
- 39-

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2006

MR. SHINYAMA: Well, I think Hilo and the Big Island does not have ...the, the way
they do their street lighting on the Big Island is a little bit different, because the
City and County maintains the street lights. And in Maui County, we maintain
the street lights under that Rate Schedule F, so it's completely different how it's
being done. I can get you information as to what size lamps they use, you know,
that kind of information. However, yeah, it is differently how it's, it's addressed,
'cause the City and County actually owns and maintains their own system. So I
might suspect, yeah, so it's different.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I appreciate that. Then maybe that's
something, Mr. Chairman, we can request our Public Works Director to deal with
his counterpart to get the information, if this moves forward before Council
entertains decision-making. Thank: you very much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Mr. Molina.

Thank: you, Mr. Hokama.

Members, any more questions?

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Shinyama, can you comment
on the disposal of Low Pressure Sodium, I mean, as compared to the disposal of
High Pressure Sodium? Is there, is there a difference or certain procedures that
you have to take in terms of the two?
MR. SHINYAMA: I think at some years back when we explored that we had some
concerns about that, but I believe now with the way that we handle High Pressure
it should be no different from the Low Pressure from what I understand talking to
our environmental people.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. SHINYAMA: Yeah. So we don't see any significant impact on

side.

terms
mentioned,
the
I guess, manage
streetlights and replace
et cetera. Are you aware if they have any additional funding assistance?
it all
just on the County or do they also get funding assistance from, say, the Federal
government or ...
MR. SHINYAMA: I'm, I'm not aware of that. I'm not aware either way whether they
do it or not.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. As part of your, I guess, information gathering is that
something you could assist us with in finding out?
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MR. SHINYAMA: I, well, I could talk to my counterparts at Hawaiian, Hawaiian
Electric Light Company; however, I'm not sure if they would have that
information. 'Cause it's, it is the City and County that would have probably that
information. So maybe if, I don't know if maybe Milton if he talks to his
counterparts, so that there they can, they can get that information on the County
side. And I'll ask from my counterpart at HELCO; however, I think that question
might be more pertinent to the City and County of Honolulu, I mean Hilo, Big
Island.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Shinyama? If not, thank you very much, Mr. Shinyama, for being here.
Questions for the Parks Department, anyone? Seeing none. At this time the Chair
would like to ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... Well, I have a few comments to make in
regards to questions and answers that were provided to us by the Public Works as
well as the Police Department and Mr. Shinyama and things that we need to
follow up on. I would like to have the Committee take a look at the proposals that
Mr. Arakawa had presented this Committee, and we'll work with Corporation
Counsel in trying to draft out a bill for an ordinance in regards to outdoor lighting
here in Maui County.
One of the things that we need to consider is the ... and consider very strongly ...
is the, the core service that we provide this County which is public safety, fire, as
well police protection in our County of Maui. So we need to address the, the
concerns of the Police Department. So at this time, the Chair would like to defer
this matter and continue our discussion in, in regards to the outdoor lighting plan
for Maui County. Mr. Molina.
support
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. First of all,
your deferral and, but I'm hopeful that we can take some action before the end of
the term. Because based on the responses that we've
getting from
public
it seems overwhelming at
point, a large majority
folks who want to see
some type of lighting ordinance whether it be with the LPS or without, but at least
some form of shielding, which, I think is, you know, something to at least be
aware that the public is sensitive to this issue. At least it's on their minds and
they've seen the demonstrations of the LPS, so you have a segment of the public
that likes the LPS, a segment of the public that can live with the shielding. So
light pollution seems to be on the mind of a few folks here, and I haven't had any
major calls of opposition against it.
Of course the Police have, have some concerns and some very legitimate
concerns. But I think we have to take into consideration the cost, after seeing
what LPS will cost if we fully implement this in the ordinance I think we have to
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keep that in mind. And with regards to the residential component more and more
as I see it, it will be somewhat of an enforcement nightmare. So I personally,
before the end of the term, would like to see some type of action taken. Maybe
we need to take baby steps at this point in time, but I think there's potential for
some type of ordinance that the public can live with in the beginnings, if you will.
The Big Island, they've had this fully implemented for 20 years, and from prior
meetings there's been no indication of increased crime rates or major opposition
to that. So maybe we, we could have some type of ordinance not on the same
level as that of our sister County on the Big Island, but I'm open to seeing some
type of action taking place real soon and we've had this for now six years. I was
just commenting to my colleague from Molokai, Mr. Mateo, when I looked at the
first document, it was signed by then Chairman the late Pat Kawano. So this has
been, been around for a while.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank...
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So anyway I'll support your recommendation for deferral,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Mr. Molina. Yeah. This is one of two
items that I have on my master agenda that has taken, well, for this, you know,
since Mr. Kawano was the Chair. I do have another item that's been there for
probably over a decade that we need to take care. Yeah. I, too, would want
something passed prior to the elections in regards to outdoor lighting. And I think
having that information from the Public Works Director we can move forward on
some of the items that has been suggested by the Public Works Director. But at
this time, the Chair would like to ask the Public Works Director in regards to the
compliance of the Title MC-I5, the Administrative Rules, if you could comment
on that and the obligations of the Department itself.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, as you've mentioned, we do have Administrative Rules
which actually have
shielding or cutoff
that
has already
passed for the time
compliance.
as we've mentioned to the Committee
Pressure Sodium or
previously, this debate over whether or not to go with
High Pressure Sodium or shielded or cutoff lenses has tempered our decision to
hold off on doing the full shielding for now. Because basically if we do the, if we
have done the shielding and the Committee decides to do, the Council decides to
implement Low Pressure Sodium all that money to install the shielding would
have been wasted, because we'd have to install basically a new fixture. So at this
point, we're looking for some conclusion on this discussion and move forward on
whatever is decided.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Director. Questions? Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
And that's my understanding of the proposed
ordinance is different from the Department, Mr. Chairman. I don't see a problem
for us to start shielding the intersections. And I think we can move forward with
those specific areas of the County unless Mr. Arakawa needs additional financial
appropriation or ifhe wants some type of codification in the Maui County Code to
assist his Department with. So I just make that comment at this time, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You want to respond, Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAW A: Mr. Chair, basically if, you know, if the Committee and the Council
wish to proceed before the end of the term and you come to some overall decision
on what to do then I think that's sufficient guidance for us as to how to proceed.
But our, our presentation, at this point, is .. .I know the current bill mentions that
we would allow High Pressure Sodium within 50 feet of intersections. But
whether or not that's the final decision, I guess, is still up in the air at this point.
So you know if, if the intent is to do something by the end of the term then, you
know, fine. We'll certainly try to implement and if funding is needed then we'll
come forward to the Council to request that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One last question, Chairman. Thank you. I would
ask if Mr. Arakawa, in his communications with his colleague from the Big
Island, can also discuss and report back and tell us once and for all should this
Council consider the County of Maui taking over the maintenance of the
streetlights like the Big Island? And what are its advantages; what its
disadvantages; or in your analysis the current practice, which is to allow the utility
to have that responsibility, should remain? Thank you, Chairman.
Staff,

Mr.

iYJ.'-"HUU.

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:
Mr. Chairman.
One
Member Hokama's question has spurred me into asking Mr. Arakawa a question.
we were to take over the maintenance
the street lighting do we have .. .I
mean can you give us an answer at this time? Do we have the sufficient personnel
and whatever else to do something like this?
MR. ARAKAWA: I can tell you right now we don't have the sufficient personnel. We'd
have to come forward with additional personnel requests. Exactly how much, I'm
not certain at this point.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa, earlier
you referenced the, the need to address that item called safety. And you heard the
testimony by the Police Department and their issue also is safety. You heard the
Police Department indicate that, if anything, more fixtures would be needed to
deal with the dark areas.
So in your preparation or in your further review I'm kind of hoping that you do
have the opportunity to discuss the matter further with the Department, because
one way or another we're going to end up talking dollars and cents. And I think
it's going to be important to us to get a better handle on what the transition would
cost, because it's no longer $4 million, you know, as earlier indicated by the
Department. The utility company tells us it's close .. .it's a potential of 6.4 just to
change the head and the lamp. But obviously we're going to be talking about
more fixtures. So, we don't even know if we talking eight, nine, or ten million
dollars.
So perhaps in the Department's plans if you could also provide us with some kind
of a ballpark, so we know what we'd be looking at to actually address the issue
called safety. I know that's a lot but I think, you know, you're going to have to
prepare it in time for budget anyhow, so thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKA WA: Councilmember Mateo, I know this whole issue of safety is a
somewhat difficult one to get a handle on. We would probably, as I mentioned, I
think we'd probably need some outside assistance to kind of help us determine
what the standard should be here in Maui County. And you know I think you
bring up some good points and we'll take that to heart.
COUNCILMEMBER

Okay.

PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any more questions?
not before I defer, the Chair would like to have all of us have a moment of silence
to reflect back as far as September 11 th. And I do ask each and everyone of us
remember our troops out in foreign countries defending our nation. So a moment
of silence.
Moment of Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. If there is no more discussion, the Chair
would like to call this meeting to close. Meeting adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

- 44-

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

September 11, 2006

ACTION:

ADJOURNED:

DEFER pending further discussion.
11:45 a.m.
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